
 
 

Agenda 
 
 

Town of Boiling Springs Board of Commissioners 
 
 

June 5, 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

It is the desire of the Board to allow all citizens an opportunity to speak and to conduct business in an open, professional, 
and productive manner.  Persons not specifically listed on the agenda but wishing to speak must register with the Town Clerk 
prior to the start of the meeting.  These persons will be recognized by the Mayor during the “Recognition of Citizens Present” 
portion of the meeting.  A maximum of three (3) minutes will be allowed unless otherwise approved by a majority of the Board.  
Groups are urged to choose one spokesperson.  If you require additional time, you may ask to be placed on the agenda for 
the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board.  This policy was adopted in an effort to allow the Board members 
adequate notice of business to come before it as well as time to familiarize themselves with an issue.  

Town of Boiling Springs 

P.O. BOX 1014 
BOILING SPRINGS, NC 28017 

Telephone 704-434-2357 
Fax 704-434-2358 

www.boilingspringsnc.net 

 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA 

TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
June 5, 2012 

7 p.m., Town Hall 
 

 
1. Call to Order – Max J. Hamrick, Mayor       - 

 
 

2. Approval of Minutes          3 
May 1, 2012 Regular Meeting 
May 1, 2012 Closed Session 
May 17, 2012 Budget Meeting 
 

 
3. Recognition of Citizens Present 

 
 
 

4. Regular Business           8 
− Cleveland County Solid Waste Management Plan Update 
− Resolution of Intent to Adopt Floodplain Measures 
− Taxi Regulations 
− Resolution Authorizing Disposal of Real Property  
− FY 2011-2012 Budget Amendment – Police Department Vehicle 
− Public Hearing FY 2012-2013 Budget Ordinance 
− Curbside Recycling Proposals 

 
 

5. Staff Reports           22 
 
 

6. Commissioners’ Reports/Comments        23 
 
 

7. Mayor’s Report/Comments         23 
 



    

  
 
  

 
Town of Boiling Springs 
Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 1, 2012 
 

 
     The Board of Commissioners of the Town of Boiling Springs met May 1, 2012 at the Boiling Springs 
Town Hall.  Present were: Mayor Max J. Hamrick; Commissioners William Elliott, Darlene Gravett, James 
Beason, John Glenn, and Cliff Hamrick.  Town Attorney John Schweppe, III was also present.  Staff 
members present: Town Manager Zach Trogdon, Town Clerk Kimberly Greene, Finance Officer Rhonda 
Allen, Chief Randy Page, and Public Works Director Mike Gibert.   
                                                                              
    Others Present:    
 
AGENDA ITEM I 
Call to Order – Max J. Hamrick, Mayor     
                                                                                                                                                       
AGENDA ITEM II 
Recognition of Citizens Present     
       
AGENDA ITEM III 
Approval of Minutes 
      Commissioner Gravett made the motion to approve minutes of the April 3, 2012 regular meeting as 
previously mailed.  Commissioner Elliott seconded and the vote was unanimous.  
 
Informational:  
     Mayor Hamrick requested an update on the B&W Fiber Glass Sewer Project.  Mr. Trogdon reported he 
and Mike Gibert met with Dave Odom, the project engineer, regarding the sewer line encasement that will 
be located under the new US Hwy 74.  They were able make the design adjustments without compromising 
the project and were still within the budget. 
 
     Mr. Trogdon reported he signed the Encroachment Agreement that RST Communications requested to 
enable them to run fiber optic cables on the right-of-ways along Town owned streets.  In 2007, the 
Secretary of State became the franchising authority for cable service replacing local regulation.  Mr. 
Trogdon reported RST had obtained a state issued franchise.   
 
     Mr. Trogdon reported on the RFP for the Curbside Recycling Program.  He provided the Board 
information on the State of N.C. recycling roll out cart grant.   Mr. Trogdon also discussed purchasing the 
recycling carts under a “piggyback” bid with another public entity that has formally bid out this item to help 
expedite the process.  The Board agreed move forward with this project. 
 
AGENDA ITEM IV 
Regular Business 
Surplus Property Resolution  
     Mr. Trogdon requested the Board surplus the following vehicle for public sale on GovDeals.com:   
 

1993 International Refuse Truck – VIN #1HTGBN2RXPH491080 
 

      Commissioner Hamrick made the motion to adopt the Resolution Authorizing the Sale of Surplus 
Personal Property.  Commissioner Glenn seconded and the vote was unanimous. A copy of the Resolution 
is on file in the office of the Clerk. 
 
Budget Amendments  
      Rhonda Allen reported Budget Ordinance Amendment #120501.1 is necessary to make changes in the 
Town’s budget to allocate funds awarded to the Town by the Wal-Mart Distribution Center.    
 
 Section 1.  Revenues   Increase 
  Miscellaneous Revenue   $1,500 
 



 

 
  

 Town Board Minutes 
May 1, 2012 

Page 2 
 

Section 2.  Expenditures   Increase  
  Departmental Supplies   $1,500 
 
     Ms. Allen also reported a budget amendment is necessary to move contingency funds to pay ESC 
claims.   

Line Item Account Name 11-12 Budget 
Amount Increased  

(Decreased) 
11-12 Budget As Amended 

General  Administration       

1-4120-49 Miscellaneous $  5,000  $11,200  $16,200  

1-4120-48 Contingency $20,000  ($11,200)                               $  8,800  

Totals   $25,000  0  $25,000  
 
      Commissioner Gravett made the motion to adopt both the Budget Ordinance Amendment #120501.1 
and the FY 2011-12 Budget Amendment Authorization Form.  Commissioner Beason seconded and the 
vote was unanimous. A copy of the Budget Amendments is on file in the office of the Clerk. 
 
Draft Taxi Regulations 
     Mr. Trogdon reported he was contacted regarding Town regulations for operating a taxi service.  He 
discussed the proposed regulations with the Board.  The Board agreed to table this item for further review.    

 
AGENDA ITEM VI 
Staff Reports 
Mike Gibert, Public Works Director 
     Mike Gibert reported the Yard Waste Collection Policy had been updated to be posted online in 
conjunction with Chapter 52: Solid Waste of the Town Code Ordinances.  He requested the Board adopt 
the following policy: 
 
Yard Waste Collection Policy 
     It is the policy of the Town to provide citizens living within the corporate limits, as they now exist or are 
hereafter amended, with yard waste collection on a weekly basis.  The following provisions shall apply to 
this service: 
 
•   The Town shall only collect yard waste as it is defined in Section 52.02 of the Town Code Ordinances. 
•   Yard waste must be placed at curb or edge of pavement. 
•   Yard waste may not be mixed with non yard waste material to the extent it may cause damage to the 
    machinery used for collection. 
•   Tree trimmings generated by any person receiving compensation for said service shall be the 
    responsibility of the tree service, individual and/or property owner. 
•   Leaves and grass clippings may not be bagged or placed in any type of container. 
•   Yard waste should whenever possible be placed as specified above so as not to impede traffic, block  
    vehicular site visibility or affect the natural drainage of storm water. 
•   Limbs should be no more than 4” in diameter and 10’ long.  Tree stumps will not be collected.   
•   The Town collects leaves/limbs on a rotating basis that varies depending on volume; therefore your  
    leaves/limbs may not be collected on your regularly scheduled collection day.   
•   The Town cannot predict the exact date or time of your leaf/limb collection, however you may call the 
    Town Hall to report. 
 
     Commissioner Hamrick made the motion to adopt the Yard Waste Collection Policy.  Commissioner 
Gravett seconded and the vote was unanimous.   



 

 
  

Town Board Minutes 
May 1, 2012 

Page 3 
 
 

     Town Hall offices will be closed Monday, May 28, 2012 in observance of Memorial Day.  The garbage 
collection for Monday May 28, 2012 will be collected on Tuesday, May 29, 2012.  The remainder of the 
week will be on schedule.  
     The Wastewater Department recently smoke tested several areas in search of infiltration issues.  The 
Department is working on problem areas that were discovered on the McBrayer Homestead Road sewer 
line cleanouts and also on a couple of right-of-ways in the area.  
 
Zach Trogdon, Town Manager 
     Mr. Trogdon discussed potential walking routes for the Cleveland County Health Department “Eat Smart, 
Move More” program.   
     Mr. Trogdon also discussed the YMCA Recreation Services Agreement.  The Board directed Mr. 
Trogdon amend the current Agreement by declining the 5% increase and possibly decreasing it for the next 
couple of years until community recreation services improve.   
     The Board agreed to meet Thursday, May 17, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. to conduct a Budget Work Session.   
 
Rhonda Allen, Finance Officer 
     Ronda Allen reported the 1998, 1999, and 2002 Ford Crown Vics were successfully auctioned on 
GovDeals.com.    
 
AGENDA ITEM VI 
Commissioner’s Report/Comments  
     Commissioner Glenn inquired about renovating the current Town Hall and Police Department offices.  
The Board authorized Mr. Trogdon contact an architect to obtain an estimate.   
 
 AGENDA ITEM VII 
Mayor’s Report/Comments       
     Mr. Trogdon formally submitted his resignation to the Board.  Commissioner Gravett made the motion to 
accept Mr. Trogdon’s letter of resignation effective June 6, 2012.  Commissioner Elliott seconded and the 
vote was unanimous.     
     The National Day of Prayer will be held at the Town Hall on May 3, 2012 from 12:20 to 12:40 p.m. 
     Mayor Hamrick requested the Board enter into executive session pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318-11(a)(6) 
to discuss personnel.   
     Commissioner Glenn made the motion to enter into executive session at 7:55 p.m.  Commissioner 
Hamrick seconded and the vote was unanimous. 
     The meeting reconvened at 8:20 p.m. 
     Executive session minutes are on file in the office of the Clerk. 
     There being no further business to come before the Board, Mayor Hamrick declared the meeting 
adjourned.    

 
    
Max J. Hamrick, Mayor 
 
 
 
Kimberly Greene, Town Clerk 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Town of Boiling Springs 
Board of Commissioners 

Closed Session 
May 1, 2012 

 
    
     At the recommendation of Mayor Max Hamrick, the Board entered into a closed session to discuss 
personnel. 
 
     Present were: Mayor Max J. Hamrick; Commissioners William Elliott, Darlene Gravett, James Beason, 
John Glenn, and Cliff Hamrick.  Town Attorney John Schweppe, III was also present.    
 
     The Board discussed the manager’s resignation.   
 
     Commissioner Glenn made the motion to adjourn into regular session at 8:20 p.m.  Commissioner 
Hamrick seconded and the vote was unanimous. 
 
 
     
                 Max J. Hamrick, Mayor 
 
        
 
           



 

  

Town of Boiling Springs 
Board of Commissioners 

Budget Work Session Minutes  
May 17. 2012 

 
 
      The Board of Commissioners of the Town of Boiling Springs met May 17, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Boiling Springs Town Hall.  Present were: Mayor Max J. Hamrick; Commissioners William Elliott, John 
Glenn, Darlene Gravett, James Beason, and Cliff Hamrick.  Staff Members present: Town Manager Zach 
Trogdon, Public Works Director Mike Gibert, and Police Chief Randy Page.   
  
The purpose of the work session was to discuss the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Budget Development.     
    
     ●  Mr. Trogdon reviewed the proposed FY 2012-2013 General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund 

revenues and expenditures.    
 

●  The Board agreed to create a full-time investigator position in the Police Department.  
 

     ●      Mr. Trogdon discussed the YMCA Recreation Services Agreement.    
 

●     The proposed budget does not recommend a change in the current tax rate of $0.29 per $100 of 
valuation.   

  
●     Employee health insurance rates are 5% less this year.  
 

     ● Mr. Trogdon reported on replacing the folding/inserting machine.      
 
●     The proposed budget does not recommend a change in the current water and wastewater rates.    
 
●      Mr. Trogdon also discussed the Lattimore Sewer System. 
 

     There being no further business to come before the Board, Mayor Hamrick declared the meeting 
adjourned at 8:30 p.m.    
 
 
      
              Max J. Hamrick, Mayor  
 
 
 
             Kimberly Greene, Town Clerk 
 
 



Meeting Date:  June 5, 2012 
Subject:  Regular Business 
 
 

- Solid Waste Management Plan – 3-Year Update (p. 9) 
 

The Town is required to adopt Cleveland County’s update to the 10-Year Solid Waste 
Management Plan since we use the County for our solid waste disposal.  The Plan is updated 
every 3 years.  An Executive Summary of the Plan changes is enclosed.  The appropriate 
resolution is also enclosed.  A copy of the entire plan is available upon request. 

 
 

- Resolution of Intent to Adopt Floodplain Measures (p. 11) 
 
This Resolution was originally done in 2007, but the floodplain regulations have changed and the 
Town needs to go through the process again.   
 

- Taxi Regulations (p. 12) 
 
An individual called asking what regulations the Town had regarding operation of a taxi service 
in Town.  Currently, the Town does not have any such regulations.  You will find enclosed a draft 
of proposed regulations. 
 
 

- Resolution Authorizing Disposal of Real Property (p. 17) 
 
The Town still has ownership of several parcels of land that were intended to be sites for drinking 
water wells.  The Town now purchases drinking water and has no other purpose or use for those 
parcels now or in the future.   
 
 

- FY 2011-2012 Budget Amendment – Police Vehicle (p. 18) 
 

The budget needs to be amended to reflect the purchase of a police vehicle to replace on that 
was totaled in an accident (Town employee was not at fault).  A portion of the revenue is 
from the insurance payment for the vehicle and from revenue brought in from surplus police 
equipment that was sold. 
 
 

- Public Hearing for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Budget Ordinance (p. 19) 
 
Enclosed you will find the 2012-2013 Budget Ordinance.  You were sent budget details under 
separate cover and the entire budget is available for public inspection at Town Hall. 

 
 

- Curbside Recycling Proposals 
 
Staff will have a summary of the proposals submitted to offer curbside recycling service for the 
Town. 
 



Executive Summary 
Cleveland County 10 year – 3 year Update 

of the Solid Waste Management Plan 
 
 
The original plan was done in 1997 and since then has had 5 updates.  The plan has been 
prepared in accordance with North Carolina General Statute 130A-309.09A(b) for the purpose 
of meeting local solid waste goals and protecting public health and the environment within the 
Cleveland County planning area.  
 
The State’s waste reduction goal of 40 percent is based on each county’s per capita disposal 
rate in FY 1990-91.  For Cleveland County, the per capita disposal rate in FY 1990-91 was 0.86 
tons per person per year.  However, the waste from a private C&D landfill was not included in 
the base line year when it should have been; consequently, the alternate base line is 1.66 tons 
per person per year. The County’s goal is to reduce the per capita tonnage from the base line by 
0%.  In FY 2010-2011, the County’s per capita tonnage was 1.43 tons per person per year, which 
is a reduction of 13.9% over the base line. 
 
The “2 for 1” program has changed.  The County will issue a landfill disposal credit enabling 
municipalities to dispose of 2 tons of solid waste free of charge at the Landfill for each ton of 
waste that they can document as being diverted through their municipal curbside recycling 
programs in the first full year after implementation.  It will then be reduced to 1 for 1 in the 
second year and will not be available in the third year or any time thereafter.  This change can be 
found on page 34 of the plan. 
 
An addition to the plan is that the County Solid Waste Department is working with the County’s 
Building Permitting and Inspection Office to obtain the addresses of any building activity 
requiring a permit.  The enforcement officer contacts the builder(s) to assure that they understand 
what can and cannot be disposed in the construction and demolition landfill, that waste loads 
have to be covered to prevent litter and that the waste has to be hauled by a County franchised 
hauler.  This addition can be found on pages 37, 41 and 50 of the Plan. 
 
Other additions are:  
 

• The collection of anti-freeze at all the sites that collect used motor oil and filters.  This 
addition can be found on page 44. 

• Computer and ledger paper is collected at all sites and this can be found on page 19. 
• Shelby and Kings Mountain are now collecting recyclable at the curb and this can be 

found on pages 20 and 38. 
• Electronics and expired prescription drugs are collected on household hazardous waste 

collection day and this can be found on page 45. 
 

The recent modification of the plan for the collection of discarded computer equipment and 
televisions has been added to this plan on page 53. 
 
All tables on pages 2 thru 17 have been changed to reflect either new census estimates or data for 
the last full fiscal year which is 2010-2011.  The sections on pages 2 thru 17 associated with the 
tables have also been changed to reflect the up to date data.  
 
 



 Town of Boiling Springs 

P.O. BOX 1014 
BOILING SPRINGS, NC 28017 

Telephone 704-434-2357 
Fax 704-434-2358 

www.boilingspringsnc.net 

 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND ENDORSING THE SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT PLAN OF 2012 FOR CLEVELAND COUNTY 
 
WHEREAS, it is a priority of this community to protect human health and the environment 
through safe and effective management of municipal solid waste; 
 
WHEREAS, the reduction of the amount and toxicity of the local waste stream is a goal of this 
community; 
 
WHEREAS, equitable and efficient delivery of solid waste management services is an essential 
characteristic of the local solid waste management system; 
 
WHEREAS, it is a goal of the community to maintain and improve its physical appearance and 
to reduce the adverse effects of illegal disposal and littering; 
 
WHEREAS, Cleveland County recognizes its role in the encouragement of recycling markets by 
purchasing recycled products; 
 
WHEREAS, involvement and education of the citizenry is critical to the establishment of an 
effective local solid waste program; 
 
WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina has placed planning responsibility on local government 
for the management of solid waste; 
 
WHEREAS, NC General Statute 130A-309.09A(b) requires each unit of local government, 
either individually or in cooperation with other units of local government, to update the Ten-
Year Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan at least every three years; 
 
WHEREAS, the Cleveland County Solid Waste Management Department and Citizens Solid 
Waste Advisory Council have undertaken and completed a long-range planning effort to evaluate 
the appropriate technologies and strategies available to manage solid waste effectively; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS: 
 
That Cleveland County’s 2012 Ten-Year Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan 
is accepted and endorsed and placed on file with Clerk to the Board on this 5th day of June, 2012. 
 
 
SIGNED:  _________________________  ATTEST:  _____________________ 
  Max Hamrick, Mayor     Kim Greene, Clerk 



ORDINANCE #120605.01 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE XI OF THE BOILING SPRINGS’ 

CODE OF ORDINANCES, “BUSINESS REGULATIONS” 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Boiling Springs, 
North Carolina that: 
 
Part 1.   Title XI of the Town of Boiling Springs’ Code of Ordinances is hereby amended 
to read: 
 
 
§ 115.01  DEFINITIONS 
 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 
 
CRUISING.  The movement of taxicabs containing only the driver thereof over the public streets 
in search of or soliciting prospective passengers for hire; except that such taxicabs proceeding to 
answer a telephone call for taxicab service from an intended passenger, and taxicabs returning by 
the most direct route, after having discharged a passenger, to the garage where such taxicab is 
housed or to its depot or terminal nearest to the place of discharge of the passenger, shall not be 
considered to be cruising. 

OPERATOR OF A BUSINESS INVOLVING VEHICLES FOR HIRE.  An owner or manager 
of a business, other than one, all of whose vehicles are regulated under G.S. Ch. 62, operated by a 
regional transportation authority created or operating under G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 26 or 27, or any 
transportation service operated by a governmental entity, which involves one or more vehicles for 
hire operated at any time within the corporate limits of the town, including a taxicab business, 
whether or not the individual actually drives the vehicle, and whether or not the business is 
engaged in other activities. If the business is owned by a corporation, it shall be every person 
given corporate authority for making decisions regarding the day to day functioning of the 
business. If the business is owned by a limited liability company, it shall be every member-
manager of the limited liability company.  

TAXICAB. Any motor vehicle seating nine or fewer passengers operated upon any street or 
highway on call or on demand, accepting or soliciting passengers indiscriminately for hire 
between points along streets or highways as may be directed by the passenger so being 
transported. 

VEHICLE FOR HIRE. Any motor vehicle, including, but not limited to, a taxicab, accepting or 
soliciting one or more passengers for hire between any two locations, during at least a portion of 
which it is operated upon a public street or highway, other than those vehicles regulated under 
G.S. Ch. 62, vehicles owned and operated by a regional transportation authority created or 
operating under G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 26 or 27, or vehicles owned and operated by a governmental 
entity. 

 



 
§ 115.02  COMPLIANCE 
 
It shall be the duty of every owner of a taxicab or taxicab company to comply with the provisions 
of this article and to require that all drivers or chauffeurs driving or proposing to drive a taxicab 
for such owner adhere to and at all times conform to the requirements of this article. 
 
 
§ 115.03  PERMIT REQUIRED 
 
Every operator of a business involving vehicles for hire is required to obtain a permit from the 
town prior to operating the business. Every driver of a vehicle for hire, including a taxicab, 
operating over any public street within the corporate limits of the town is required to obtain a 
permit from the town prior to engaging in the activity. 
 
§ 115.03  APPLICATION 
 
The application required of each applicant to operate a business involving vehicles for hire or to 
drive a vehicle of hire, including a taxicab, shall be made upon a form furnished by the town for 
that purpose and shall, among other things, require the full name, any other name by which the 
person has been known, complete physical and mailing address, physical condition, physical 
description, full name and contact information for every former employer within the last ten 
years, court record, chauffeur's license number, if applicable, and other identifying information as 
may be needed to conduct a state or national background check.  The application shall be signed 
and sworn to by the applicant in front of a Notary Public of North Carolina.   
 
Each applicant shall further appear at the office of the Police Department for the purpose of 
having his or her fingerprints taken and photograph made, both of which shall constitute a part of 
the application. Each applicant shall be required to sign a form consenting to the check of his or 
her criminal record and to the use of the fingerprints and other identifying information required 
by the state or national repositories in order to conduct the check. 
 
 
§ 115.03  INVESTIGATION 
 
The Chief of Police or his or her designee shall investigate the facts stated in each application 
and, in addition, may subject an applicant to a national criminal history background check, 
including through the use of FBI records.  All information collected pursuant to the investigation 
shall be privileged, in accordance with applicable state law and federal guidelines, and the 
information shall be confidential and shall not be a public record under G.S. Ch. 132. The 
applicant must pay the fee, if any, for any background check.  
 
The Chief of Police or designee may also require an applicant to submit to a controlled substance 
examination for which the applicant must pay the actual costs. Following his or her investigation, 
the Chief of Police or his or her designee shall report his or her findings and recommendations to 
the Board of Commissioners, but any privileged or confidential information shall only be shared 
with the Board of Commissioners in a properly called closed session. 
 
 
§ 115.03  COMPLIANCE INSPECTIONS 



Any person issued a permit under this chapter shall allow random inspections by the Chief of 
Police or his or her designee of any vehicle currently available for hire. The inspections shall be 
for the following purposes: 

     (A)     To ensure that the vehicle is maintained in a safe and sanitary condition; provided, the 
inspections shall not be considered a substitute for required state safety inspections, and shall not 
constitute a guarantee or assurance to any person by the town that a vehicle for hire is safe or 
sanitary; and 

     (B)     To ascertain compliance with this chapter, including, but not limited to: 

          (1)     Determining that the permit, schedule of fares and a photograph of the driver are 
displayed as required; 

          (2)     Determining that there is a permanent sign at a conspicuous place on each taxicab or 
vehicle for hire showing that it is a taxicab or vehicle for hire; 

          (3)     Determining that the vehicle's state safety inspection is current; and 

          (4)     Determining that the driver of the vehicle is in possession of a valid driver's license, 
registration and proof of insurance. 

 
§ 115.04  IDENTIFICATION OF VEHICLES 
 
Every taxicab which shall operate on the streets shall have posted, painted or placed on the 
outside of the body of such vehicle, in lettering not less than two inches in width, the name of the 
owner or operator of the vehicle. Such taxicab may be operated under an emblem or trade name 
of the same size and similarly placed on the outside of the body of the taxicab when the true name 
of the owner shall have been filed in writing with the Town Clerk.  
 
 
§ 115.05  STAND/TERMINAL REQUIRED 
 
Every taxicab operated on the streets of the Town shall have a stand or terminal on private 
property; and no taxicab shall be permitted to use the public streets in the Town except for the 
purpose of transporting, loading and unloading passengers and their baggage, and for the purpose 
of returning to such taxicab stand or terminal by the most direct route. 
 
 
§ 115.06  SOLICITING BUSINESS; CRUISING 
 
No taxicab driver or employee of any such driver or owner, or any other person shall solicit 
patrons by word of mouth at or in front of any store, on any street corner, at any street 
intersection, or on any public street, square, alley or sidewalk within the Town. Cruising within 
the Town is prohibited. 
 
 
§ 115.07  DISPLAY OF PERMIT, SCHEDULE OF FARES, DRIVER’S PHOTO 
 



All drivers and operators of businesses involving vehicles for hire shall prominently display in 
each vehicle for hire, so as to be visible to the passengers, the permit, the schedule of fares and a 
photograph of the driver. 
 
 
§ 115.03  REVOCATION 

At any time after the issuance of a permit to any person to operate a business involving vehicles 
for hire or to drive a vehicle for hire, the Board of Commissioners may revoke the permit: 

     (A)     If the person holding the permit, or any driver employed by the person is convicted of a 
felony; or 

     (B)     The person holding the permit, or any driver employed by the person: 

          (1)     Violates any federal or state statute relating to the use, possession or sale of 
intoxicating liquors; 

          (2)     Violates any federal or state statute relating to the use, possession or sale of narcotic 
drugs; 

          (3)     Repeatedly violates any traffic laws or ordinances; 

          (4)     Violates any state or federal statute relating to prostitution;  

          (5)     Becomes an habitual user of intoxicating liquors or narcotic drugs; 

          (6)     The operator of the business fails to maintain a policy of liability insurance as 
required by G.S. § 20-280 and this chapter; or 

          (7)     Refuses to submit to a random compliance search pursuant to § 115.03, or upon 
inspection, the Chief or his or her designee determines that a vehicle currently available for hire is 
not being maintained in a safe or sanitary condition. 

 
§ 115.08  NON-TRANSFERABILITY OF PERMIT 
 
A permit issued under this chapter is not transferable 
 
 
§ 115.08  OPERATION OF TAXICABS FROM OUTSIDE OF TOWN 
 
A person driving a taxicab for which no city license and certificate of public convenience and 
necessity has been issued, and which is operated from a place of business not in the Town, may 
bring passengers into the Town; but shall not solicit any passengers for any destination within or 
without the Town. 
 
 
 



Part 2. All ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Part 3. This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the Board of 
Commissioners of the Town of Boiling Springs, North Carolina. 
 
 
ADOPTED this the 5th day of June 2012. 
 
 
 

SIGNED:  _________________________ 
  Max J. Hamrick, Mayor 

ATTEST:  _________________________ 
  Kim Greene, Town Clerk 

 



 Town of Boiling Springs 

P.O. BOX 1014 
BOILING SPRINGS, NC 28017 

Telephone 704-434-2357 
Fax 704-434-2358 

www.boilingspringsnc.net 

 
 
 
 

Resolution Authorizing Disposal of Real Property 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Boiling Springs owns real property that no longer has any 

usefulness for the Town, and;   
 
WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-269 authorizes the Town to dispose of property through a process of 

receiving, soliciting, or negotiating an offer, which is then advertised for upset bids, and;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS: 

 
The Town Manager is authorized to receive, solicit, or negotiate offers on the following 
real property:   
 

Parcel No. Map/Block/Lot Acreage 
1108 BS10-3-23 .740 
3017 BS10-3-21 .830 
1106 BS10-3-20 .910 

 
Each offer will require the offeror to deposit five percent (5%) of the bid with the Town 
Clerk.  Upon advertisement of the bid, any successive bidder may raise the bid by not less 
than ten percent (10%) of the first one thousand dollars ($1,000) and five percent (5%) of 
the remainder.  The increased bid will be advertised and the process will repeat until no 
further qualifying bids are received.  At this time, the Board may accept the offer and sell 
the property to the successful bidder.   

 
 
Adopted this 5th day of June, 2012. 
 
      ____________________________ 
       Max Hamrick, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________ 
       Kim Greene, Clerk 



TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS  
BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT #120605.1 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Boiling Springs adopted a budget 
ordinance on June 28, 2011 which established revenues and authorized expenditures for the fiscal 
year 2011-2012; and 

 
WHEREAS, since the time of the adoption of said ordinance, it has become necessary to 

make certain changes in the Town’s budget to allocate funds to replace a wrecked police car;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the 

Town of Boiling Springs that the budget ordinance as adopted on June 28, 2011 be and is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 

Section 1. Revenues  
Increase 

Profit/(loss) on sale of assets  $18,000 
Fund balance appropriation      7,600 
 Total     

 $25,600 
 

 
Section 2. Expenditures 

Increase 
Police capital outlay  $22,600 
Police equipment (non-capital)      3,000 
 Total     

 $25,600 
 

 
 

This the 5th day of June, 2012. 
 
 

 
        _______________________________ 

                              Max J. Hamrick, Mayor   
     
 
                                                                                                

       
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________                                                                    
Kim Greene, Town Clerk 



 Annual Budget Ordinance FY 2012-2013 
 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
Section 1.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the General Fund for the operation 
of the Town Government and its activities for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 and ending 
June 30, 2013 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established for this 
municipality: 
 
 

 
1-4120       

 
Administration $   401,702

 
1-4310  

 
Police                      $   545,279

 
1-4340    

 
Fire Protection $   81,300

 
1-4500 

 
Street Lighting $     43,800

 
1-4510  

 
Powell Bill $   267,000

 
1-4710 

 
Solid Waste $   274,094

 
1-6120 

 
Recreation $   169,793

  
Total  $1,782,968

 
 
 
Section 2.  It is estimated that the following revenue will be available in the General Fund for the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 and ending June 30, 2013: 
 
 

 
Property Taxes $   777,323 
 
State Collected Taxes $   465,100 
 
Grants $     76,140 
 
Local Fees and Revenues $   201,182 
 
Powell Bill Allocation $   127,717 
 
Powell Bill Reserve Appropriation $   135,000 
 

Total $1,782,968 



Section 3.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Water and Sewer Fund for the 
operation and administration of the Town-owned water and sewer systems for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2012 and ending June 30, 2013 in accordance with the chart of accounts 
heretofore established for this municipality: 
 

 
6-7110 

 
Administration $   190,405

 
6-7130 

 
Water Operations $   626,895

 
6-7140 

 
Sewer Operations $   580,705

 
6-7150 Lattimore Sewer $31,986
 
 

 
Total $1,429,991

  
     
Section 4.  It is estimated that the following revenue will be available in the Water and Sewer 
Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 and ending June 30, 2013: 
 

 
Customer Charges $1,335,200 
 
Other Revenues $56,300  
 
Reserve Appropriation $38,491  
 
                                            Total  $1,429,991 

 
 
Section 5.  There is hereby levied a tax at the rate of twenty-nine cents ($0.29) per one hundred 
dollars ($100.00) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 1, 2012 for the purpose of 
raising the revenue listed as “Current Year’s Property Tax” in the General Fund in Section 2 of 
this ordinance.  This tax rate is based on an estimated total valuation of property, for the purpose 
of taxation of $ 271,000,000 and an estimated collection rate of 97% by June 30, 2013.  The 
estimated rate of collection is based on collection rates at June 30, for the five (5) previous fiscal 
years. 
 
 
Section 6.  The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within a fund as 
contained herein under the following conditions: 
 

A. He/she may transfer amounts between line items within a department without limitation 
with a report being required at the next regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 

 
B. He/she may transfer amounts up to $1,000 between departments of the same fund with an 

official report on any such transfers at the next regular meeting of the Board of 
Commissioners. 

 



 
C. He/she may not transfer any amounts between funds nor from any contingency 

appropriation within any fund.  
 
 
Section 7.  Copies of this budget ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk to the Board, the 
Budget Officer and Finance Officer for direction in the carrying out of their duties. 
 
 
Adopted this the 5th day of June 2012. 
 
 
 
 

                      Kim Greene *                                                      Max Hamrick *       
                Kim Greene          Clerk                                         Max J. Hamrick               Mayor 
 
 

*Signatures on file in Town Clerk’s Office 



Meeting Date:  June 5, 2012 
Subject:  Staff Reports 
 
 
  

Police 
 

− Departmental Structure 
 
 
Public Works 
 
 
 
 
Finance 

 
 
 
 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Town Attorney 

 
  

 
 
 
Town Manager 

 
− IPDC Planning Services Agreement 
− Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance Amendments 
− Wastewater Collection/Treatment Agreement- Town of Lattimore 
− Recreation Agreement 
− Board Appointments 
− Reschedule July 3rd meeting 

 
 



Meeting Date:  June 5, 2012 
Subject:  Commissioners’ Reports 
 
 
 Commissioner Gravett 
 
 
 
 

Commissioner Elliott 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Beason 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Glenn 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner C. Hamrick 
 

 
  
 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  June 5, 2012 
Subject:  Mayor’s Report 


	AgendaPacket
	Cover
	June_5_2012
	AgendaPacket
	2012-05-01 Minutes
	2012-05-01 Closed Session Minutes
	2012-05-17 Budget Work Session
	executive summary ten year plan 2012
	SolidWastPlanResolution2012
	CHAPTER115TaxiRegs
	ResolutionDisposalRealPropertyJune2012
	BA 120605 1
	BudgetOrdinance1213
	Staff_Manager_Report

	RegularBusiness

	Commissioners_Mayor_Report



